
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24023 – 930 Military Parkway Living 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: Cody Hunt; Taylor Thomas; Tom Huth
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: 930 Military Parkway Living - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 3:15:00 PM

Good afternoon,
 
You are in receipt of this notification because you are associated with a 2024 Housing Tax Credit
Application that elected points related to Readiness to Proceed as established at 10 TAC §11.9(e)(9). 
Based on available documentation, staff does not believe that the requirements of this scoring item
were met, and therefore has determined that the Applicant may be eligible for a point penalty under
10 TAC §11.9(f).  This email serves as the required 14-day notification that this matter will be
presented to the Department’s Governing Board at the meeting to be held on June 12, 2025.
 
If you believe that the Application in question did meet the requirements related to Readiness to
Proceed and that staff’s conclusion is incorrect, please contact Cody Campbell, Director of
Multifamily Programs, at cody.campbell@tdhca.texas.gov as soon as possible.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Thank you,
 
Cody Campbell
Director of Multifamily Programs
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs
221 E. 11th Street | Austin, TX 78701
Office: 512.475.1676
Fax: 512.475.3359
 
About TDHCA
The Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs administers a number of state and federal programs through for-
profit, nonprofit, and local government partnerships to strengthen communities through affordable housing development,
home ownership opportunities, weatherization, and community-based services for Texans in need.  For more information,
including current funding opportunities and information on local providers, please visit www.tdhca.state.tx.us
 



  
c/o John C. Shackelford, Shackelford, Bowen, McKinley & Norton, LLP 

9201 N. Central Expressway, Fourth Floor 
Dallas, Texas 75231 
Tel: (214) 780-1414 

 

 
 
 
June 5th, 2025 
 
Mr. Cody Campbell 
Director of Multifamily Programs 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
221 East 11th Street 
Austin, TX 78701 
 
RE: Readiness to Proceed Response for TDHCA Application #24023, 930 Military Parkway 
Living 
 
Dear Mr. Campbell, 
 

On behalf of 930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd., please see below response to the notice of 
potential LIHTC penalty related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% 
Housing Tax Credit application for 930 Military Parkway Living. We ask that the Board consider 
the following in relation to any penalty that may be imposed under Readiness to Proceed. 

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on 
or before March 31, 2025.  

 

Evidence of building permit submission to the City of Mesquite was provided in 
the initial Readiness to Proceed response in March. This item should be considered 
fulfilled.   

 

2. Documentation that the Development Site has been acquired in its entirety, dated on or 
before March 31, 2025.  

930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd. applied for NHT Funds through the Multifamily 
Direct Loan Program’s 2025-1 NOFA to close a financial gap caused by the state 
of the market. The development is in line to receive funding based on department 
review and underwriting. For the Multifamily Direct Loan Program, a National 
Housing Trust Funds Environmental Review was necessary before the award could 
be recommended. To avoid any potential choice limiting action, the land could not 
be acquired prior to receiving clearance from TDHCA. The development team did 



cc/oo Johnn C.. Shackelford,, Shackelford,, Bowen,, McKinleyy && Norton,, LLPP 
92011 N.. Centrall Expressway,, Fourthh Floorr 

Dallas,, Texass 752311 
Tel:: (214)) 780-1414

not want to take any action that could jeopardize receiving the necessary soft 
funding for completing this development. Since the Environmental Review was 
only finalized on May 5th, 2025, and the soft funding is scheduled to be voted on at 
the July 10th TDHCA Board meeting, we were not able to acquire the land for this 
development prior to March 31, 2025. 

We believe an exception should be made for this rule for the 2024 9% housing tax credit 
awards. Our current economy is too volatile to punish developments that are unable to meet the 
above requirements due to circumstances outside of the developer’s control. 930 Military Parkway 
Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on the financing and begin construction 
before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of building permit submission.  

We ask that the Board not impose any point penalty on the Developer of 930 Military 
Parkway Living given the above information. We are happy to provide additional information 
regarding the specifics of our circumstance upon request. 

Sincerely,

Cody J. Hunt 
Authorized Representative of 930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd.  
Cody J H
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March 28th, 2025 
 
Mr. Cody Campbell 
Director of Multifamily Programs 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
221 East 11th Street 
Austin, TX 78701 
 

RE: Readiness to Proceed Documentation for TDHCA Application #24023, 930 Military Parkway 
Living 

 

Dear Mr. Campell, 

 

On behalf of 930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd., please see below regarding the following items 
related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit application 
for 930 Military Parkway Living.  

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on or 
before March 31, 2025.  

 
See below evidence of building permit submission to the City of Mesquite. The attached 
screenshot from the City of Mesquite Civic Access portal and the email correspondence 
shows permit submission was on January 25th, 2025, and continues to be in process.  
 

2. Documentation that the Development Site has been acquired in its entirety, dated on or before 
March 31, 2025.  

It is important to know, as this deal in located in an urban market with extremely high 
land costs, it is very uncommon for developers to close on land prior to financial closing 
due to the increased risk we would have to assume. In July when we received our 9% 
housing tax credit award, our development team had every confidence the 10-year 
treasury was going down and felt confident about our ability to financially close on the 
deal and acquire the land by this March 31st deadline. 

Unfortunately, the 10-year spiked and has held steady since then. Equity pricing has also 
dropped significantly. To combat these situations and still move forward with the deal, 
we have been fortunate enough to find a few local jurisdictions supplying soft funding to 
help construct affordable housing.  

930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd. Has applied for NHT Funds through the Multifamily 
Direct Loan Program’s 2025-1 NOFA. Based on the most recent application log, the 
development is in line to receive funding based on department review and underwriting. 
If these funds trigger an environmental clearance process, acquiring the land before 
receiving clearance to use the funds could result in a choice limiting action. The 
development team does not want to take any action that could jeopardize receiving the 
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necessary soft funding for completing this development. Since the soft funding and 
potential environmental clearance is still up in the air, we have not been able to acquire 
the land for this development prior to the deadline.  

We submit this documentation with the understanding that it is only partially met yet given the 
tumultuous circumstances of the market at the moment, we believe an exception should be made for this 
rule for the 2024 9% housing tax credit awards. Our current economy is too volatile to punish 
developments that are unable to meet the above requirements due to circumstances outside of the 
developer’s control. 930 Military Parkway Living is still moving forward with every intention to close 
on the financing and begin construction before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of 
building permit submission.  

We ask that the Board consider the above in relation to any penalty that may be imposed under 
Readiness to Proceed. We are happy to provide additional information regarding the specifics of our 
circumstance upon request. 

Sincerely,

Cody J. Hunt 

Authorized Representative of 930 Military Parkway Living, Ltd.  
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24030 – 2910 Motley Senior Living 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: Cody Hunt; Taylor Thomas; Tom Huth
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: 2910 Motley Senior Living - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 3:16:00 PM

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
 
RE: Readiness to Proceed Response for TDHCA Application #24030, 2910 Motley Senior Living 
 
Dear Mr. Campbell, 

On behalf of 2910 Motley Senior Living, Ltd., please see below response to the notice of 
potential LIHTC penalty related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% 
Housing Tax Credit application for 2910 Motley Senior Living.  

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

2910 Motley Senior Living, Ltd. applied for NHT Funds through the Multifamily 
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
only finalized on May 2nd, 2025, and the soft funding is scheduled to be voted on 



cc/oo Johnn C.. Shackelford,, Shackelford,, Bowen,, McKinleyy && Norton,, LLPP 
92011 N.. Centrall Expressway,, Fourthh Floorr 

Dallas,, Texass 752311 
Tel:: (214)) 780-1414

at the June 12th TDHCA Board meeting, we were not able to acquire the land for 
this development by March 31, 2025.  

We believe an exception should be made for this rule for the 2024 9% housing tax credit 
awards. Our current economy is too volatile to punish developments that are unable to meet the 
above requirements due to circumstances outside of the developer’s control. 2910 Motley Senior 
Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on the financing and begin construction 
before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of building permit submission.  

We ask that the Board not impose any point penalty on the Developer of 2910 Motley 
Senior Living given the above information. We are happy to provide additional information 
regarding the specifics of our circumstance upon request. 

Sincerely,

Cody J. Hunt 
Authorized Representative of 2910 Motley Senior Living, Ltd.  

y

C d J H
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
 

RE: Readiness to Proceed Documentation for TDHCA Application #24030, 2910 Motley Senior Living 

 

Dear Mr. Campell, 

 

On behalf of 2910 Motley Senior Living, Ltd., please see below regarding the following items 
related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit application 
for 2910 Motley Senior Living.  

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on or 
before March 31, 2025.  

 
See below evidence of building permit submission to the City of Mesquite. The attached 
screenshot from the City of Mesquite Civic Access portal shows that the initial permit 
submission was on January 27th, 2025, and continues to be in process.  
 

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

2910 Motley Senior Living, Ltd. Has applied for NHT Funds through the Multifamily 
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
developer’s control. 2910 Motley Senior Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on 
the financing and begin construction before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of 
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





 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24038 – 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: Cody Hunt; Tom Huth; Taylor Thomas
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 3:17:00 PM

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
 
RE: Readiness to Proceed Response for TDHCA Application #24038, 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior 
Living 
 
Dear Mr. Campbell, 
 

On behalf of 3606 S Cockrell Hill Rd, Ltd., please see below response to the notice of potential LIHTC 
penalty related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit 
application for 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living. We ask that the Board consider the following in 
relation to any penalty that may be imposed under Readiness to Proceed. 

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on or before 
March 31, 2025.  

 
Evidence of building permit submission to the City of Dallas was provided in the initial 
Readiness to Proceed response in March. This item should be considered fulfilled.   
 

2. Documentation that the Development Site has been acquired in its entirety, dated on or before 
March 31, 2025.  

3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living, Ltd. applied for and is in line to receive soft 
funding through the City of Dallas Housing Department’s 2024 NOFA. These will be 
HOME Funds that will be used predominately for the land acquisition and scheduled to be 
approved by the Dallas City Council on June 25, 2025. This type of funding triggers a HUD 
environmental clearance process with Authority to Use Grant Funds; therefore, acquiring 
the land before receiving clearance to use the funds could result in a choice limiting action 
under 24 CFR 58.22. The development team does not want to take any action that could 
jeopardize receiving the necessary soft funding for completing this development. Since the 
environmental clearance is still in process and we are still awaiting an AUGF, we were not 
able to acquire the land for this development prior to March 31, 2025.  
 

We believe this development should receive an exemption for the site acquisition portion of this 
rule due to HUD’s Choice Limiting Action requirements. Our stance is the rule of the Code of Federal 
Regulations should supersede the QAP in specific instances and developments that are under HUD’s 
regulations should not be penalized for circumstances outside of the developer’s control. 3606 S Cockrell 
Hill Road Senior Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on the financing and begin 
construction before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of building permit submission.  
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We ask that the Board not impose any point penalty on the Developer of 3606 S Cockrell Hill 
Road Senior Living given the above information. We are happy to provide additional information 
regarding the specifics of our circumstance upon request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Thomas E. Huth 
Authorized Representative of 3606 S Cockrell Hill Rd, Ltd.   
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

RE: Readiness to Proceed Documentation for TDHCA Application #24038, 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road
Senior Living

Dear Mr. Campell,

On behalf of 3606 S Cockrell Hill Rd, Ltd., please see below regarding the following items related to 
the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit application for 3606 S 
Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living. 

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on or 
before March 31, 2025. 

See below evidence of building permit submission to the City of Dallas. The attached 
correspondence from the City of Dallas ProjectDox shows the initial permit submission 
and set up of our QTeams meeting. The statement that the minimum requirements for 
acceptance were not met was rectified in a conversation with our reviewer. This 
correspondence and submission occurred on March 10, 2025, and continues to be in 
process. 

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

3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living, Ltd. has applied for soft funding through the 
City of Dallas Housing Department’s 2024 NOFA. Based on recent conversations with 
the housing department, the development is in line to receive funding based on 
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underwriting. The type of funds the development will be receiving is still to be 
determined. If these funds trigger an environmental clearance process, acquiring the land 
before receiving clearance to use the funds could result in a choice limiting action. The 
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
developer’s control. 3606 S Cockrell Hill Road Senior Living is still moving forward with every 
intention to close on the financing and begin construction before the end of the year, this is shown with 
the evidence of building permit submission.  

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
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24042 – 10112 Bissonnet Living 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: Cody Hunt; Taylor Thomas; Tom Huth
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: 10112 Bissonnet Living - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 3:18:00 PM

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
 
RE: Readiness to Proceed Response for TDHCA Application #24042, 10112 Bissonnet Living 
 
Dear Mr. Campbell, 
 

On behalf of 10112 Bissonnet, Ltd., please see below response to the notice of potential LIHTC 
penalty related to the Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit 
application for 10112 Bissonnet Living. We ask that the Board consider the following in relation 
to any penalty that may be imposed under Readiness to Proceed. 

 

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on 
or before March 31, 2025.  

 

Evidence of building permit submission to the City of Houston was provided in the 
initial Readiness to Proceed response in March. This item should be considered 
fulfilled.   

 

2. Documentation that the Development Site has been acquired in its entirety, dated on or 
before March 31, 2025.  

10112 Bissonnet Living was fortunate to receive a recommendation for an award 
of $4M in HOME funding from the City of Houston, but full approval of the 
funding is dependent on the Authority to Use Grant Funds (AUGF). The 
environmental clearance process started in September, and the AUGF was not 
received until April 25th, 2025. This was a problem as taking down the land prior 
to receiving the AUGF would have been a choice limiting action under 24 CFR 
58.22 which we have been warned about by the City of Houston multiple times. 



cc/oo Johnn C.. Shackelford,, Shackelford,, Bowen,, McKinleyy && Norton,, LLPP 
92011 N.. Centrall Expressway,, Fourthh Floorr 

Dallas,, Texass 752311 
Tel:: (214)) 780-1414

We did receive our AUGF, but not in time to acquire the land for this development 
prior to March 31, 2025.  

We believe this development should receive an exemption for the site acquisition portion 
of this rule due to HUD’s Choice Limiting Action requirements. Our stance is the rule of the Code 
of Federal Regulations should supersede the QAP in specific instances and developments that are 
under HUD’s regulations should not be penalized for circumstances outside of the developer’s 
control. 10112 Bissonnet Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on the 
financing and begin construction before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of 
building permit submission.  

We ask that the Board not impose any point penalty on the Developer of 10112 Bissonnet
Living given the above information. We are happy to provide additional information regarding the 
specifics of our circumstance upon request. 

Sincerely,

Cody J. Hunt 
Authorized Representative of 10112 Bissonnet, Ltd.  
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
 

RE: Readiness to Proceed Documentation for TDHCA Application #24042, 10112 Bissonnet Living 

 

Dear Mr. Campell, 

 

On behalf of 10112 Bissonnet, Ltd., please see below regarding the following items related to the 
Readiness to Proceed points item elected in the 2024 9% Housing Tax Credit application for 10112 
Bissonnet Living.  

1. Evidence that the Applicant applied for permits from the local permitting jurisdiction on or 
before March 31, 2025.  

 
See below evidence of building permit submission to the City of Houston. The attached 
Plan Review Workflow shows that the initial permit submission was on December 9th, 
2024, and continues to be in process.  
 

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
help construct affordable housing. These have mostly been HOME Funds and CDBG 
Funds. 

The issue we are now running into is environmental clearance timelines. This 
development was fortunate to receive a recommendation for an award of $4M in HOME 
funding from the City of Houston, but full approval of the funding is dependent on the 
Authorization to Use Grant Funds (AUGF). The environmental clearance process was 
started in September, and it is still in process today. This is a problem as taking down the 
land prior to receiving the AUGF is a choice limiting action which we have been warned 



22

about by the City of Houston multiple times. As of submitting this documentation, we 
have not received the AUGF and therefore, have not been able to acquire the land for this 
development prior to the deadline  

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
developer’s control. 10112 Bissonnet Living is still moving forward with every intention to close on the 
financing and begin construction before the end of the year, this is shown with the evidence of building 
permit submission.  

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
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24076 – New Faith Senior Village Apartments 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: donna@marqueconsultants.com; donna@dwrdevelopment.com; Alyssa Carpenter; Meredith Edwards
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: New Faith Senior Village Apartments - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 4:24:00 PM

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
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24079 – Park at Dogwood 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: byron@theparkcompanies.com; mark@theparkcompanies.com; kendra@betcohousinglab.com; Lora Myrick
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: Park at Dogwood - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 4:26:00 PM

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
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June 6, 2025

Mr. Cody Campbell
Director of Multifamily Programs
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs
221 E.  11th St.
Austin, TX  78701

Via Email: cody.campbell@tdhca.texas.gov

RE:  Potential Penalty Assessment - Readiness to Proceed Penalty
Park at Dogwood (TDHCA # 24079)

Dear Mr. Campbell,

As indicated to staff, Park at Dogwood LP (the “Applicant”) was unable to meet the closing requirement 
outlined in §11.9(e)(9) of the 2025 QAP related to Readiness to Proceed due to circumstances beyond the 
Applicant’s control. We understand staff intends to take this item before the board at the June board 
meeting and we ask for staff’s consideration of the factors below when making its presentation to the 
board.  

Pursuant to §11.9(f), related to Factors Affecting Scoring and Eligibility in current and future Application 
Rounds, “Staff may recommend to the Board and the Board may find that an Applicant or Affiliate should 
be ineligible to compete in the following year's competitive Application Round or that it should be
assigned a penalty deduction in the following year's competitive Application Round of no more than two 
points for each submitted Application (Tex. Gov't Code §2306.6710(b)(2)) because it meets the conditions 
for any of the items listed in paragraphs (1) - (4) of this subsection.”  The Applicant is comprised of The 
New Braunfels Housing Authority as general partner and Park at Dogwood, LLC as special limited partner.  
Park Group Properties II, LLC and BETCO Consulting, LLC (HUB) are both members of the special limited 
partner.  No affiliates of Park Group Properties II, LLC submitted a 2025 competitive Application.  BETCO 
Consulting, LLC was included as a HUB member on three 2025 competitive Applications in Regions 10 
Rural and 12 Rural.  The HUB should not be penalized for not meeting the acquisition requirement.  The 
scope of the HUB’s participation does not include ability to close on acquisition.  Further, we do not believe 
it is the intent of §11.9(f) to penalize minority interest entities.

The Applicant has maneuvered around several circumstances outside of their control, especially when 
FEMA updated their flood maps after the application was submitted which put the vast majority of the 
site in a flood plain.  The FEMA flood map change, among other factors, have significantly impacted the 
Applicant’s ability to close acquisition by March 30, 2025.  In March of 2025, the TDHCA Governing Board 
approved an amendment, waiver, and request of force majeure for Park at Dogwood.  Within the 
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materials submitted for the amendment and waiver request, the Applicant notified TDHCA of the impact 
the unforeseen circumstances would have on the timeline and requested a waiver of the penalty point 
deduction as outlined in §11.9(f).  It is important to note the Applicant did submit for permits before the 
Readiness to Proceed deadline and we provided evidence of this in our RTP submittal package.  The 
CLOMR and Endangered Species Report was submitted to FEMA and the City of New Braunfels in March 
of 2025.  Even though the Applicant is confident the CLOMR will be approved, land closings while FEMA 
is in the process of reviewing a CLOMR is very challenging. It’s not necessarily prohibited, but poses as an 
additional risk to the project as FEMA is determining how the project will affect flood hazards and they 
may require specific conditions be met before the property can be considered outside of the Special Flood 
Hazard Area (SFHA). Additionally, FEMA is determining if the project will meet the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP) standards for removing areas from the SFHA. A $1,700,000 land closing before 
approval of the CLOMR is received would pose a significant burden and excessive risk to the Applicant. 
We don’t believe this was the intended use of the Readiness to Proceed points in the QAP given the 
circumstances.

The FEMA floodplain determination was beyond the reasonable control of the Partnership and could not 
have been reasonably anticipated.  While the Applicant did elect one point for Readiness to Proceed, the 
Application would have still been funded without electing the point.  Given these facts, the Applicant
respectfully requests that the Board grant the exception under 10 TAC 11.9(f), and not assess a penalty 
against members of the Applicant.  

If you have any questions or would like to discuss these items further, please do not hesitate to contact 
me directly at (512) 785–3710 or via email at lora@betcohousinglab.com .

Sincerely,

Lora Myrick, Principal
BETCO Consulting, LLC
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RTP Closing Narra ve 

The site has not been acquired. Applicant requested a Force Majeure from TDHCA’s board on
March 6, 2025. The board approved the request “as described, condi oned, and authorized in
the board ac on request, resolu ons, and associated documents on this item.” The associated
documents for the item are a ached, which included a request to waive the penalty associated
with not mee ng the requirements of RTP.
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 2201 Northland Drive, Austin, Texas 78756  812 San Antonio Street, Suite L-20, Austin, Texas 78701  

February 20, 2025 
 
Mr. Cody Campbell 
Director of Multifamily Programs 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
211 E 11th Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 
 
Via Email: Cody.Campbell@tdhca.texas.gov 
 
Re: Force Majeure Request - TDHCA HTC Application #24079 – Park at Dogwood, New 

Braunfels, TX 
 
Mr. Campbell:  
 
Comal Partners, L.P. (the “Owner”) received an allocation of Housing Tax Credits from the Texas 
Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA”) for the construction of Park at Dogwood 
(the “Development”) in 2024. The 2024 allocation of tax credits currently requires the Development 
to meet the 10% test by July 1, 2025 and place the Development in service by December 31, 2026.  
Unfortunately, the Owner faces the possibility of not being able to meet these deadlines as required 
by §42(h)(1)(E)(i) & §42(h)(1)(E)(ii) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The need for requesting an 
extension to meet the required 10% test and placed in service deadlines is the result of events that 
we believe should fall under the provisions of §11.6(5) of the 2024 Qualified Allocation Plan (“QAP”) 
relating to Force Majeure. 
 
The Development is located in New Braunfels, Texas, in Comal County.  At the time of Application, the 
Development Site contained a sliver of AE floodplain, estimated at 4% of the site(see Exhibit A).  On 
May 8, 2024 FEMA unexpectedly updated the flood maps, significantly increasing the amount of 
floodplain on site to approximately 70% (see Exhibit B).  In order to get a floodplain permit and 
building permits, the City of New Braunfels will require:  completion of a grading plan to prove there 
will be “no-rise” impact to the floodplain, a hydraulic study report, preparation of elevation 
certificates for all proposed buildings, and submission and approval of a FEMA CLOMR application.  
These additional steps were unforeseeable at the time the Owner submitted its application to TDHCA.  
It is estimated the earliest these steps could be completed and permits received would be October of 
2025.  The additional time needed to accommodate these extra steps extends past our 10% test 
deadline and would not allow sufficient time to complete construction.   
 
To mitigate the increased floodplain on the site, additional fill dirt must be hauled in to ensure 
finished ground floor elevations are at least two feet above floodplain and drive areas are no lower 
than six inches below the floodplain.  The additional and unforeseeable costs related to hauling in off-
site dirt to get the site above the 100-year floodplain is currently estimated at $616,262.  
 
Additionally, at the time of Application submission, Regions Bank proposed to purchase the tax 
credits at a rate of $0.88 per dollar.  Since then, tax credit pricing has been negatively affected by 
speculation of a proposed reduction to corporate tax rates by the incoming new administration, the 
saturation of energy credits in the market, and no bonus depreciation.  Today’s proposed equity 
pricing from Regions is $0.81 per dollar, which results in a loss of $1,399,860 in total equity.   
 



which is pretty typical for a development that is on 2202

track.2203

2204

It does appear as though the redesignation of this site 2205

as being substantially within the floodplain is what is 2206

delaying development at this point.  One of the 2207

allowable provisions of the force majeure rule is a 2208

change in rule or regulation that causes delay.  And so 2209

Staff reviewed this, we do believe that it meets the 2210

provision of the rule, and we recommend that the Board 2211

approve it.2212

2213

Leo Vasquez III (1:16:27): 2214

Okay.  Do board members have questions on this item?2215

And Staff recommends --2216

2217

Cody Campbell (1:16:38): 2218

Yes, sir.2219

2220

Leo Vasquez III (1:16:39): 2221

-- approve it?  Okay.  I'll entertain a motion on item 2222

20 of the agenda.2223

2224

2225

I'll entertain a motion on item

20 of the agenda.



Holland Harper (1:16:50): 2226

I move the Board approve the requested treatment under 2227

application of force majeure rule at the Park at 2228

Dogwood, all as described, conditioned, and authorized 2229

in the board action request, resolutions, and associated 2230

documents on this item.  I do feel that you are going to 2231

be back before this board and I hope that's not the 2232

case.  I wish you the best in your project.2233

2234

Leo Vasquez III (1:17:08): 2235

Motion made by Mr. Harper.  Is there a second?2236

2237

Cindy Conroy (1:17:11): 2238

I'll second.2239

2240

Leo Vasquez III (1:17:13): 2241

Seconded by Ms. Conroy.  All those in favor say aye.2242

2243

Ajay Thomas (1:17:17): 2244

Aye.2245

2246

Holland Harper (1:17:17): 2247

Aye.2248

2249

I move the Board approve the requested treatment under

application of force majeure rule at the Park at 

Dogwood, all as described, conditioned, and authorized

in the board action request, resolutions, and associated 

documents on this item.
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These unforeseeable events have impacted and delayed closing and construction commencement, 
which has had an adverse effect on meeting Readiness to Proceed, 10% Test and anticipated Placed 
in Service timelines.   

The Owner has been working through gap issues to close this development as quickly as possible.  A 
request to amend the Application to bring in the New Braunfels Housing Authority and reduce the 
total number of units to maintain financial feasibility has been submitted to TDHCA.  The Owner is 
unable to close on the Development Site until a decision is made regarding the number of units to be 
built.  A timeline of events is included as Exhibit C in this request. 

We request that the Owner be permitted to return the Tax Credits and that TDHCA reallocate the Tax 
Credits to the Owner in the current year in accordance with §11.6(5) of the 2024 QAP relating to 
Force Majeure.  We believe the Owner and Development meet all the requirements in Section 11.6(5), 
in that: 

1. The events that caused the delay occurred before issuance of 8609s and were sudden, 
unforeseen circumstances outside the control of the Development Owner. 

2. The delays were not caused by willful negligence or acts of Owner, any Affiliate, or any 
other Related Party. 

3. The Owner has provided evidence and a timeline of the events that was the direct result 
of the delays. 

4. Though there was little that could be done to mitigate the effects of a changed floodplain 
map and equity pricing issues, the Owner immediately contacted the proposed financial 
partners of the Development and began working out a viable financing option that we 
believe will assist in making the Development feasible once again. Should TDHCA approve 
the requested amendment request, the Development will become financially feasible 
once again.  

5. The Force Majeure threatens to prevent the Owner from meeting the Readiness to 
Proceed deadline, 10% Test, and Place in Service requirements of the original allocation. 

6. The requested current year Carryover Agreement would allocate the same amount of Tax 
Credits as those that would be returned. 

7. If the proposed requests are granted, the Development will become financially feasible 
again.  

Furthermore, because the aforementioned events were unforeseeable and beyond the reasonable 
control of the Applicant, we respectfully request to waive the penalty point deduction as outlined in 
§11.9(f). 

These unforeseeable events have impacted and delayed closing and construction commencement,p y g
which has had an adverse effect on meeting Readiness to Proceed, 10% Test and anticipated Placed
in Service timelines. 

The Force Majeure threatens to prevent the Owner from meeting the Readiness toj
Proceed deadline, 1

Furthermore, because the aforementioned events were unforeseeable and beyond the reasonabley
control of the Applicant, we respectfully request to waive the penalty point deduction as outlined in 
§11.9(f). 
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 2201 Northland Drive, Austin, Texas 78756  812 San Antonio Street, Suite L-20, Austin, Texas 78701  

 
If you have any questions or would like to discuss these items further, please do not hesitate to 
contact me directly at (512) 785-3710 or via email at lora@betcohousinglab.com . 
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Exhibit C

March 1, 2024     Application submitted 
May 8, 2024     FEMA Updated flood maps 
July 25, 2024     Park at Dogwood Awarded tax credits 
August 26, 2024    Park at Dogwood Received tax credit Commitment 
September 2024 Fully engaged architect and engineers to submit for 

building permits 
December 2024  Architectural drawings & civil engineering drawings 

95% complete 
 Received reduced equity pricing from investors 
 Received construction pricing from contractors 

Began searching for non-profit partner 
February 2025 Submitted building permits & floodplain permits to 

City 
 Notified from City that CLOMR is required from FEMA 

to get building permits 
March 2025 Submit CLOMR and Endangered Species Report to 

FEMA and City of New Braunfels 
April 2025 City’s First Floodplain Review & Comments 
June 2025 City’s Second Floodplain Review & Comments 
July 2025 City’s Third Floodplain Review and Issue of Floodplain 

permit 
October 2025 FEMA approval of CLOMR 
November 2025 Receive building permits from City  
 Close on LIHTC equity financing and construction loan 
 Commence Construction 
April 2027 100% of units Placed in Service 
June 2027 100% of units leased 

g p y
Close on LIHTC equity financing and construction loan

November 2025 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24084 – Andover Village Apartments 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: donna@dwrdevelopment.com; jamie@marqueconsultants.com; ajcarpen@gmail.com; Meredith Edwards
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: Andover Village Apartments - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 4:28:00 PM

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
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111 Congress Avenue
Suite 810
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Phone:  512.215.3200

www.bakerlaw.com
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Via Electronic Mail

221 East 11th Street

en : Joshua

Re: : - 
Apartments 

We represent Applicant 
above.  
e 2024 QAP which requires the Applicant to evelopment 
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2025.  

  
can that it its
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.   Phase Engineering to 
complete the environmental clearance.  
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24094 – Freedom’s Path at Kerrville II 

  



From: Cody Campbell
To: ctaylor@sfveterans.org; pmmurchison@gmail.com; Robbye Meyer
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: Freedom"s Path Kerrville II - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 4:30:00 PM

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
 



Freedom’s Path Kerrville II Limited Partnership
235 Ponce de Leon Place, Suite M313 • Decatur, GA 30030 • Telephone (678) 232-0015  

Email ctaylor@sfveterans.org

March 28, 2025 

Ms. Cody Campbell 
Director of Multifamily Finance 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
P O Box 13941 
Austin, TX 78711 

Re: Application #24094 Freedom’s Path Kerrville II – Readiness to Proceed

Dear Mr. Campbell, 

Unfortunately, due to the turmoil at the federal level right now concerning layoffs with the 
Veterans Administration (the “VA”), an already slow system has been slowed even more. 
The Freedom’s Path Kerrville II Limited Partnership (the “Owner”) has not been able to 
close on the land. The VA requires a full close on all financing in a transaction. A full closing 
by March 31, 2025, is not possible and was not foreseen when the application was submitted 
in March 2024.  

The Owner has submitted the plans and necessary requirements for permits to the City of 
Waco and the receipt of those permits is pending payment. Evidence of the submission is 
attached with this letter.

The Owner has acted in good faith with this application and wants to continue to abide by the 
rules in place. The loss of the two points for the Readiness to Proceed selection would not 
have affected the application’s award, as the other application in the subregion scored well 
below this application. The Owner will accept the penalty of having to sit out of the 2026 
application cycle or for a reduction of points in 2026 should the board select the point 
penalty. 

Yours truly, 

Freedom’s Path Kerrville II Limited Partnership   

By:  Solutions for Veterans, Inc        
Its: SLP Member              

By:______________________________  
William Craig Taylor  

________________________________________ ______________________________ ___
William Craig Taylylylyyllllylylyllllylyllylyyllllylyyllylllylyllyyylyyylorr



Fee Type Amount Due Amount Paid
Plan Review Fee (This fee is available for payment in the customer portal) $20,022.50 $20,022.50

Water Tap (Custom Quote) (This fee is available for payment in the customer portal) $5,022.00 $0.00

Water Meter (Existing Tap - Custom Quote) (This fee is available for payment in 
the customer portal)

$4,502.57 $0.00

Water Meter (Existing Tap - Custom Quote) (This fee is available for payment in 
the customer portal)

$4,502.57 $0.00

Water Meter (Existing Tap) (This fee is available for payment in the customer portal) $576.45 $0.00

New Account Fee (Water - Sewer - Garbage) (This fee is available for payment in 
the customer portal)

$40.00 $0.00

Parkland Dedication Fee East $52,000.00 $0.00

$86,666.09 $20,022.50

Balance to Pay: $66,643.59

City of Kerrville - Building Inspections and Permits

200 Sidney Baker Street
Kerrville, TX  78028
Phone: (830) 258-1514

Thursday, March 20, 2025

Invoice for Permit Number 2025-79
Katus Design Group - Steve Zoerner
3604 Memorial Blvd.
Kerrville TX 78028

Two Convenient Payment Options Available
If paying by credit or debit card a 3% processing fee will apply.

Pay Online with your Debit or Credit card through the MyGovernmentOnline.org portal:
Go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and login with your user account.  Click on the "Account" button at the top 
right section of the page.  Scroll down to the "My Permits" section.  Locate the permit number you wish to pay 
and click on "View Permit".  Click on the "Payments" tab.  Click on the "Pay Online" button near the bottom of 
the page to pay the balance with your Discover, Visa, MasterCard or Escrow Account.  Once you have completed 
processing your payment, please allow the permit review staff sufficient time to review your project and follow-up 
with you.
Plan review process will not begin until fees are paid

Pay In-Person (Cash, Check, or Debit/Credit card):
200 Sidney Baker Street
Kerrville, TX 78028



Payment ID Received
Date

Payment
Type

Reference
Num

Fee Amount

15548478 2/14/2025 Check Chl# 3429 Plan Review Fee $20,022.50

$20,022.50

Total $20,022.50

2025-79

3604 Memorial Blvd.
Kerrville TX 78028

Paid By:
N/A

,

Payment Description:
Plan Review Fee Payment

Payments

THIS IS NOT A PERMIT. This receipt does not authorize you to begin construction on your project.

Permit Payment Receipt

City of Kerrville
Building Services
200 Sidney Baker Street North
Kerrville, TX 78028



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24168 – The Bryan 



From: Cody Campbell
To: emoskalik@chavezfoundation.org; ajcarpen@gmail.com; meredith@meconsulting.ltd
Cc: Joshua Goldberger
Subject: The Bryan - Notice of Potential LIHTC Penalty
Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 4:31:00 PM

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
 


